System Wide Information Management (SWIM)

SWIM Cloud Distribution Service (SCDS) User Guide





Version 1.0

July 1, 2019

Federal Aviation Administration 800 Independence Avenue, SW Washington, D.C. 20591

Version	Date	Description of Change Initial Release
1.0	7/1/2019	Initial Release
1.0	11/2019	

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1.	Intro	oduction	5				
2.	2. Overview						
3.	On-	Boarding Process	5				
4.	Serv	vices	6				
4	.1	Self-Service Portal	6				
4	.2	Service Status Portal	7				
5.	SCI	DS Access and Usage	7				
5	.1	Landing Page	7				
5	.2	Account Creation	7				
5	.3	Account Creation Form	8				
5	.4	Email Verification Page	8				
5	.5	SCDS Request SWIM Data Subscription	9				
5	.6	Service Status Portal Access and Usage 1	2				
	5.6.	1 Service Status Display 1	3				
	5.6.	2 Subscriptions Page 1	3				
	5.6.	3 Account Details 1	17				
App	oendi	ix A: JMS 1.1 1	8				
App	oendi	ix B: Consumer Application Connection Steps and Design Guidance	9				
App	oendi	ix C: SCDS Jumpstart Kit	20				
Jı	umps	start Contents	20				
Jı	umps	start Configuration	22				
App	Appendix D: NESG Client Migration Guide						
Ν	ligra	ting an ActiveMQ/WebLogic Client to SCDS Solace2	24				

LIST OF FIGURES

Figure 1 - High-Level SCDS Architecture
Figure 2 - SCDS On-Boarding Process
Figure 3 - Landing Page
Figure 4 - Account Creation Page
Figure 5 - Email Verification Page
Figure 6 - SCDS Subscriptions Page
Figure 7 - SCDS New Subscription Wizard Step 1
Figure 8 - SCDS New Subscription Wizard Step 2
Figure 9 - SCDS New Subscription Wizard Step 3 10
Figure 10 - SCDS New Subscription Wizard Step 4 11
Figure 11 - SCDS Subscription Request Confirmation
Figure 12 - SCDS Subscription Request Email
Figure 13 - SCDS Subscription Approved Email
Figure 14 - SCDS Status Display
Figure 15 - SCDS Subscriptions Page – Pending 13
Figure 16 - SCDS Subscriptions Page – Approved 13
Figure 17 - SCDS Subscription Controls
Figure 18 - SCDS Connection Details Tab
Figure 19 - SCDS Subscription Metrics Tab
Figure 20 - SCDS Jumpstart Kit Tab 16
Figure 21 - SCDS Message Viewer Tab 16
Figure 22 - SCDS User Profile Menu 17
Figure 23 - SCDS Jumpstart Kit Download
Figure 24 - SCDS Windows Jumpstart Kit Contents
Figure 25 - SCDS Linux Jumpstart Kit Contents

LIST OF TABLES

Table 1 - SCI	DS Services	6
Table 2 - SCI	DS Queue Metrics	. 15

1. Introduction

The System Wide Information Management (SWIM) Program is a National Airspace System (NAS)-wide information system that supports Next Generation Air Transportation System (NextGen) goals. SWIM facilitates the data-sharing requirements for NextGen, providing the digital data-sharing backbone of NextGen. The SWIM Cloud Distribution Service (SCDS) is an FAA cloud-based service that provides publicly available FAA SWIM content to FAA approved consumers. Consumers interface with SCDS via the Java Message Service (JMS) version 1.1. More information on the Solace JMS API can be found on Solace's website at https://docs.solace.com/Solace-JMS-API/Solace-JMS-Overview.htm.

2. Overview

SCDS provides a direct internet, non-VPN, connection to SWIM JMS services via the FAA Public Cloud. The intent of SCDS is to reduce the burden and time for SWIM users to request and connect to FAA SWIM data. To accomplish this, a self-service portal is provided to support on-demand requests for new subscriptions and changes. Figure 1 depicts the highlevel architecture for SCDS illustrating how SWIM access is provided via a public cloud with direct internet.



Figure 1 - High-Level SCDS Architecture

3. On-Boarding Process

SCDS provides users with a web management portal to request and manage access to SWIM subscriptions. Figure 2 below illustrates the process for creating an account, requesting access, connecting, and monitoring consumer connections.



Figure 2 - SCDS On-Boarding Process

4. Services

SCDS aims to improve the SWIM On-Boarding process and has implemented several core features to facilitate improved user experience. The table below provides a summary of these core SCDS features.

	Self-Service Provisioning	Users are provided with self-service access to create their own subscriptions and submit for approval. Once approved, the user's SWIM Queue is automatically provisioned for use.
	Subscription Management	SCDS provides users with fine-grained message filtering, allowing users to define the SWIM subscription that fits their specific needs.
lılı.	Client Metrics	The SCDS Portal provides users with self-service access to real-time client metrics on connections, ingress, egress, and discards, enabling users to monitor their connections, identify, and resolve any issues.
	Secure Connection	All information passed between the SCDS client and server are encrypted via a secure (TLS) connection.
∎∃∎	Managed Failover	SCDS maintains connections to both ACY and OEX SWIM NESG servers performing automatic failover, for network outages, and manual failover, for scheduled maintenance related outages.
	Help Desk Support	SCDS provides users with everything they need to manage their connections and subscriptions but in the event a user needs additional assistance in resolving issues or simply has a question about the data provided via SWIM, a dedicated Help- Desk is provided for users to email or call for support.

Table 1	- SCDS	Services
---------	--------	----------

4.1 Self-Service Portal

The SCDS Self-Service Portal is a web-enabled service that provides the ability for users to register, view available content products, and set your subscription to a product.

From the Self-Service Portal a user can:

- View the products available
- Register for access to the SCDS
- Create a subscription request to the products available

4.2 Service Status Portal

The SCDS Service Portal is a web-enabled service that provides the ability for users to view current subscriptions, metrics of the current subscriptions, view connection information to be used by their messaging client and download a Jumpstart Kit.

From the Service Status Portal, a user can:

- View active subscriptions
- View subscriptions pending approval
- View metrics of the active subscriptions
- View the messaging connection information
- Download the Jumpstart Kit
- View sample messages
- View account information

5. SCDS Access and Usage

This section will explain how to navigate the SWIM Cloud Distribution Service (SCDS) system from account creation to creating a subscription.

5.1 Landing Page

Upon navigating to the SCDS User Portal, users are presented with the SCDS Landing Page as shown in Figure 3. The Landing Page contains a list of SWIM data products available through SCDS as well as some navigation controls including a "GET STARTED" button, a "SIGN IN" link, and a link to the SCDS "SUPPORT" section that includes Frequently Asked Questions.

SCDS	suffort @ бол н ►	Federal Aviation
	\frown	Administration
		SWIM Register
	Subscribe to SWIM data products and monitor your data feeds in real-time	Email
	OET STARTED	Password
	Available Products	
	STIDIS STIDIS Stratistica Data Distribution System (STDOS) provides surface movement data (ADDEX, ASSC), approach surveillance radar data from STARS systems, Runway Youan Ranye (IVRR), and a variety of departure event data.	Confirm password
	Integrated Terminal Weather System (ITWS) includes a variety of weather information in graphic and textual forms from 30+ sites.	
	TFMS Traffic Flow Management(TFMS) provides both flight data (Flight Plans, Departure; Arrival Notifications, Position Reports) and flow information (TM, GS, GDP).	I'm not a robot
	TERM TERM is based From Management (TERM) metering information data includes introvidage of when metering is in effect at an ARTCC when Adjuscent Center Metering (ACA) is occurring and which sites, flight Conduides Time of Annais (STAc) to the numway threshold, meter fits and all arcs, flight Estimate Time of Annais (STAc) to the nummer benefold, eff.	reCAPTCHA Pringy-Tema
	FORE in the provided of the second service (SFDPE) provides a version of the Rode High Edita, such as High Edita, back as High Edita, and attrivet estimat, SFDPE also distementate data regarding annapces, such as sector configuration data, node status, Special Activity Ainspece (SAA) status, and attriveter settings, and general data including RAAL status Ainstrumton.	< Back to Login
	AILTING AILTING AND	REGISTER

Figure 3 - Landing Page

Figure 4 - Account Creation Page

5.2 Account Creation

To request an account with SCDS, click on the "GET STARTED" button on the Landing Page. The account request form will be presented as shown above in Figure 4.

5.3 Account Creation Form

Fill out the form, (passwords must be a minimum of 12 characters, contain at least one number, one lowercase letter, one uppercase letter, and one special character) and check the "I'm not a robot" checkbox in the reCAPTCHA area and then click the "SUBMIT" button to get to the Update Account Information page. The Update Account Information page will ask for your Company Name and Phone Number. Once filled out, click the "SUBMIT" button to get to the Email Verification Page shown below in Figure 5.

	Federal Aviation Administration
	SWIM Email verification
⚠	You need to verify your email address to activate your account.
An em you.	ail with instructions to verify your email address has been sent to
Haven email.	't received a verification code in your email? Click here to re-send the

Figure 5 - Email Verification Page

5.4 Email Verification Page

An email will be sent to your email address to verify your account. If you do not validate the email address within 5 minutes of receipt, the link will expire. Click on the "SIGN IN" button on the Landing Page to once again prompt the SCDS system to send another email verification. Once you click on the link in the email, your account will be validated, and you can click on "Click here to proceed" on the Email Confirmation Page. You will be directed to a page that will notify you that your email has been verified. Click on the "Back to Application" link to get the Login Page. After you log in, the Subscriptions Page will be shown. Click "GET STARTED" to begin requesting data.

5.5 SCDS Request SWIM Data Subscription



Figure 6 - SCDS Subscriptions Page

To request a SWIM data product, click on the "GET STARTED NOW" button on the Subscriptions Page, shown in Figure 6. You are directed to the New Subscription wizard shown below in Figure 7.

SCDS New	Subscription					Θ	
		0	0	0	0		
		Select SWIM Product Type	Choose Your Services	Service Filters	Review		
		Select SWIM Product Type Select the type of SWIM data you would like to subscribe to. After selecting a type you will be able to choose specific SWIM services.					
		STDDS SWIM Terminal Data Distribution System Visual Range (RVR), and a variety of dep	(STDDS) provides surface movement data (ASC arture event data.	E-X. ASSC), approach surveillance radar dat	ta from STARS systems, Runway SELECT		
		ITWS Integrated Terminal Weather System (ITV	/S) includes a variety of weather information in g	raphic and textual forms from 30+ sites.	SELECT		
		TFMS Traffic Flow Management(TFMS) provides	both flight data (Flight Plans, Departure/Arrival	Notifications, Position Reports) and flow info	mation (TMI, GS, GDP).		
			etering information data includes knowledge of v iled Time of Arrivals (STAs) to the runway threst				
			DPS) provides a variety of En Route flight data, ch as sector configuration data, route status, Sp				
		AIM FNS Notices to Airmen (NOTAMs) provides inf FAA to alert the aviation community.	ormation on temporary changes to components	of, or hazards in the National Airspace System	m (NAS) and are distributed by the SELECT		
					CANC	EL	

Figure 7 - SCDS New Subscription Wizard Step 1

The New Subscription Wizard will guide you through the subscription process in four simple steps. In Step 1, you can select a SWIM Product Type, which includes the following product types: STDDS, ITWS, TFMS, TBFM, FDPS, and AIM FNS. Select a product type by clicking on the "SELECT" button next to the desired SWIM Product Type. Step 2 presents you with the individual SWIM services contained within the selected SWIM Product. Figure 8 shows the services contained within the STDDS Product. Select the desired service(s) and click on the "NEXT: FILTERS" button.

SCDS New Subscription					Θ
	Select SWIM Product Type	Choose Your Services	Service Filters	© Review	
	STDDS - Choose Your Service: Choose the SWIM services you would like to subscrib		tion.		
	Infrastructure, System Monitor and SWIM Terminal Data Distribution System	Control n (STDDS) Infrastructure, System Monitor and Co	ontrol (ISMC) Service publishes status informati	ion for external links for each STDDS site.	
		stem (STDDS) Airport Data Service (APDS) pub ut, depending on the instrumentation for the runw			
	In addition- the service sends track position	stem (STDDS) Surface Movement Event Service ions for all aircraft and vehicles as well as gener nd surface movement events. The available data	c flight plan data collected from towers associa	ted with a Terminal Radar Approach Control.	
		stem (STDDS) Terminal Automation Information orological Conditions (IMC) data, traffic count da			
	K BACK			CANCEL NEXT. FILTERS >	

Figure 8 - SCDS New Subscription Wizard Step 2

Step 3 allows you to select which filters are applied to your selected data service. Select the desired filters and then select the "NEXT:REVIEW" to move onto the next step. Figure 9 below shows the service filter selection page.

SCDS Net	w Subscription					Θ
		Select SWIM Product Type	Choose Your Services	3 Service Filters	(3) Review	
		STDDS - Service Filters Add filters to the SWIM services you have chosen Surface Movement Event	to subscribe to. Multiple filters may be added to each	a service that supports filtering.		
		Airport KATL × V	+ ADD ANOTHER FILTER			
		Surface Movement Events Position Reports			CANCEL NEXT: REVIEW >	
		System Status MLAT Reports				
		ADSB Reports				

Figure 9 - SCDS New Subscription Wizard Step 3

Step 4 provides a review of the selected service and allows you to provide a name for the subscription and justification for the requested service. Once you fill out a name and justification, you will want to review the Terms & Conditions and then check the box to validate that you have read and agree to the Terms & Conditions. Once you complete these items, select the "FINISH" button to submit your request for approval. Figure 10 below shows the review page.

SCDS	New Subscription				8
	Select SWIM Product Type	Choose Your Services	Service Filters	4 Review	
	Select Swim Product Type	Choose Four Services	Service ritters	Review	
	TFMS - Review Review your subscription and verify that the correct St Subscription Name *	VIM services have been selected. If you forgot a service pl	ease hit the Back button to select more.		
	Justification *				
	Services & Filters				
	R13 Flight Data All Data	R13 Flow Data Message Type: ALL			
	Accessing SWIM Services				
		n Services for which they are already approved. If you wis mplete the required SAA during the SCDS Prototype perio			
	TFMS TFDM data is only available to CDM members	. If you request this information and are not a CDM mem	ber your request will be denied.		
	< BACK			CANCEL FINISH >	

Figure 10 - SCDS New Subscription Wizard Step 4

Upon submittal of the request, you will receive confirmation that your subscription request has been created and is pending approval as shown below in Figure 11.



Figure 11 - SCDS Subscription Request Confirmation

An email will be sent to the email associated with the SCDS account indicating receipt of the subscription request. Figure 12 shows an example of what this email looks like.

Your subscription request to STDDS is pending approval
Your subscription is pending approval. Once approved, you will receive an email notification. You can view the current status of your subscription <u>here</u>
Requested SWIM Services:
Surface Movement Event
Airport: KATL Message Type: Position Reports
Justification:
User Guide Development

Figure 12 - SCDS Subscription Request Email

Once your subscription request has been approved you will receive an email indicating that your subscription has been approved and the connection details will be contained within the email. Figure 13 below highlights an example of the approval email.



Figure 13 - SCDS Subscription Approved Email

5.6 Service Status Portal Access and Usage

This section describes how a user can view their content subscription requests pending, subscription approvals, connection details, content consumption metrics, as well as download a Jumpstart Kit, use the message data viewer, and review their user account information.

5.6.1 Service Status Display

SCDS provides several status indicators that help users understand if there are any issues with the SCDS messaging system and/or the data flowing into the system from the NESG SWIM Nodes. Figure 14 shows the SCDS status display that is available at the top of the SCDS portal once logged into the system.

SCDS	Subscriptions						θ
		SCDS status is up 🥝			Data status is 🛛 🛛 🛛		
	STDDS	ITWS	TFMS	TBFM	FDPS	AIM_FNS	
				<u>^</u>			

Figure 14 - SCDS Status Display

5.6.2 Subscriptions Page

From the SCDS Subscription Request Confirmation shown in Figure 14, you can select the "GO TO SUBSCRIPTIONS" button to navigate back to your subscriptions page. If you have any pending or approved subscriptions, you will see them listed as shown in Figure 15 and Figure 16.



Figure 15 - SCDS Subscriptions Page – Pending

SCDS status is up Subscriptions Your subscriptions are listed below. Each subscription is associated		×	Data status is up 🥝
		with a SWIM product type.	
APPROVED (1) PENDING (1)			C REFRESH ALL
A STDDS subscriptions			•
Created: 11/16/2018, 7:16 PM Approved	I: 11/16/2018, 7:19 PM Pro	duct: STDDS Queue: user.name.email.com.	STDDS.AbCdEfGhLmNoPqrStUvWxYz123.OUT
Created: 11/16/2018, 7:16 PM Approved Services Airport Data Infrastructure, System Monitor and Control Surface Movement Event	1: 11/16/2018, 7:19 PM Pro	duct: STDDS Queue: user name email com : Egress Message Rate Last 15 minutes	STDDS AbCdEIGhLmNoPqrStUVWXY2123.0UT Egress Data Rate Last 15 minutes

Figure 16 - SCDS Subscriptions Page – Approved

From the Subscriptions Page you can add additional subscriptions by clicking on the "CREATE A NEW SUBSCRIPTION" button in the top right area of the Subscriptions Page.

Located just under the "CREATE A NEW SUBSCRIPTION" button is a "REFRESH ALL" button that will refresh your list of subscriptions. Just under the "REFRESH ALL" button are the subscription details button and subscription metrics button Figure 17. shows the subscription details button and subscription.



Figure 17 - SCDS Subscription Controls

There are four tabs within the Subscription Details Page including a tab for connection details, subscription metric, Jumpstart Kit download, and a message viewer. The connection details button takes you to the connection details tab within the subscription details page. Figure 18 shows the connection details tab which include all information required to configure a JMS client to connect to the SCDS Queue. The subscription name can also be changed by clicking the "EDIT" button or the entire subscription can be deleted by clicking the "REMOVE" button. Currently, it is not possible to change a subscription once submitted. If a new subscription is needed, it will have to be requested and the old one removed.

SCDS Subscription De	CDS Subscription Details				
DETALS	METRICS JAMPSTART MESSAGES				
	STDDS Connect 50 2012018, 21537 PM Connection Usemanne user name email com Suser name email com STDDG. AECdEIXRA:mNis0PgrSRUVVXVY2123. GUT JUSS Connection 198. tops://ems.gototype-1-us-west-2.cinnata.com 55443 Services & Filters Surface Movement Event Argport: KRT Message Type: Position Reports	Connection Password OLOK TO SHOW Connection Factory user name email.com.CF Message VPN STDOS	EDIT 🖍 REMOVE		

Figure 18 - SCDS Connection Details Tab

The Subscription Metrics Tab shows statistics associated with each subscription. Available metrics are provided in Table 1.

Metric	Description
Connection Count	The number of consumer connections bound to the queue.
Expired Message Count	The number of messages where the JMSExpiration time has been exceeded resulting in being discarded from the queue and are no longer available for consumption.
Ingress Message Rate The rate of messages flowing into the queue per minute	
Ingress Data Rate The data rate, bytes per second, flowing into the queue	
Egress Message Rate	The rate of messages flowing out of the queue per minute
Egress Data Rate The data rate, bytes per second, flowing out of the queue	

Each of these are presented in temporal graphs that are adjustable with the following settings: Last 15 minutes, Last 30 minutes, Last hour, Last 6 hours, Last 12 hours, Last day, Last 2 days, Last 7 days, and Last 30 days. Figure 19 shows the subscription metrics tab within the subscription details page.



Figure 19 - SCDS Subscription Metrics Tab

The Jumpstart Tab provides a download button to retrieve the Jumpstart Kit for SCDS. First you select which operating system you plan to use, either Windows or Linux, and then click the "DOWNLOAD" button to get the Jumpstart Kit. Figure 20 shows the jumpstart kit tab within the subscription details page.



Figure 20 - SCDS Jumpstart Kit Tab

The Messages Tab enables users to be able to view messages as they arrive in their JMS queues. To load the latest message, press the "LOAD MESSAGE" button located at the top center of the page. Figure 21 shows the message viewer.

SCDS Subscription Deta	ails	8
DETAILS ME	ETRICS JUMPSTART MESSAGES	
	<pre>CADD MESSAGE */**********************************</pre>	

Figure 21 - SCDS Message Viewer Tab

5.6.3 Account Details

To view details associated with your account, click on the user profile icon in the top right corner and you will be presented with an option to view your account or sign out of the SCDS portal. Figure 22 shows the user profile menu options.

	Usor	Name	1
BSCRIF		My Account	
REFRE	€	Sign Out	

Figure 22 - SCDS User Profile Menu

If you click on the "My Account" option, you are taken to the Account Details Page. From this menu you are able to edit your account settings, change your portal password, set up your account for two-factor authentication (for enhanced protection of your account, not required to consume SWIM data) and see some general information on active portal sessions (active logons to the SCDS Portal) and past SCDS Portal activity. Press the "SAVE" button to make sure any changes are saved within the system. To return to your subscriptions page, select the "BACK TO SCDS" button or you can select the "SIGN OUT" button to log off from the SCDS Portal.

Appendix A: JMS 1.1

JMS is a Java API to support messaging. It is an open standard to allow Java applications to create, send, receive, and read messages. A client application must use a vendor-specific JMS client library and its dependent libraries to interoperate with a vendor's JMS broker. A JMS application using another vendor's JMS client library cannot connect to Solace, but if the client is generically written, it should be able to swap the client libraries to go from using one JMS broker to another. The Solace JMS client libraries will be provided in a Jumpstart Kit through the SCDS Self-Service Portal. More information on the Jumpstart Kit will be discussed in the Self-Service Portal Access and Usage section.

JMS allows for the use of the Java Naming and Directory Interface (JNDI) that can be used to lookup Connection Factory and Queue objects. After a JMS client performs a JNDI lookup, it can create a local JMS object from the information returned.

One difference between a client connection to another JMS broker versus the Solace broker, is the need to specify the Message Virtual Private Network (VPN) name. The Message VPNs are managed objects on Solace routers that allow for the segregation of topic space and clients.

There are a couple of ways to set the Message VPN name on the client.

1. It can be a set as a Java system property when running the Java program using the -D command line option.

"java -DSolace_JMS_VPN=myVPN …"

2. It can be set as Initial Context environment property in the Java code.



3. It can be place in a jndi.properties file that is the class path of the Java application. Solace JMS VPN=myVPN

Appendix B: Consumer Application Connection Steps and Design Guidance

If a consumer client loses their connection or receives an exception, it is recommended as best practice to write the client software to perform a reconnect. Any processing, parsing, or writing to disk of the messages after they are received should be done in a separate thread than the process thread that is consuming the messages. If parsing and writing to disk is done in the same thread as the message consumer thread, a slow consumer situation may occur and result in missed messages.

Using the Self-Service Portal Metrics Page, a user should be able to determine if their egress message rate matches their ingress messages rate. If the ingress message rate is much higher than the egress message rates and the expired message rate is not zero, then likely the client is not able to consume the messages fast enough. Possible solutions could include using a multi-threaded client or multiple clients to consume from a single queue to keep up with the message rate. Other possible issues could be limited bandwidth on the user's network or performance limitations on the user's server.

Appendix C: SCDS Jumpstart Kit

The SCDS Jumpstart Kit contains a simple JMS consumer that allows for testing connections to SCDS; it is not intended for real world applications. This section provides an overview of the SCDS Jumpstart Kit. It will cover contents of the Jumpstart Kit as well as describe how to use the Kit to consume SWIM services. There are two versions of the Jumpstart Kit available for download from the Subscription Details Page under the Jumpstart Tab depending from which operating system you will be consuming SWIM data. SCDS supports the Solace proprietary SMF protocol. To download the Jumpstart Kit, navigate to the Subscription's Details Page and the Jumpstart Tab. Select which version of the jumpstart kit you need, either Windows or Linux. Figure 23 shows the Jumpstart Kit Download Page.



Figure 23 - SCDS Jumpstart Kit Download

Jumpstart Contents

Figure 24 below shows the top-level contents of the Windows Jumpstart Kit. The README file provides details on the available configuration options for using the Jumpstart Kit as well as instructions on how to start the consumer.

Name	Date modified	Туре	Size
👢 bin	5/22/2018 11:06 A	File folder	
🐌 lib	5/22/2018 11:06 A	File folder	
👢 src	5/22/2018 11:06 A	File folder	
📄 licenses	5/22/2018 11:06 A	Text Document	2 KB
licenses-all	5/22/2018 11:06 A	Text Document	4 KB
🖺 pom	5/22/2018 11:06 A	XML Document	9 KB
README.md	5/22/2018 11:06 A	MD File	3 KB



Figure 25 below shows the contents of the Linux version of the Jumpstart Kit. The README file provides details on the available configuration options for using the Jumpstart Kit as well as instructions on how to start the consumer.



Figure 25 - SCDS Linux Jumpstart Kit Contents

Jumpstart Configuration

There are two methods to configure the Jumpstart Kit, one using command line options and the other by creating a configuration file. To use the command line, use the following command and fill in the parameters associated with the wire level protocol being used and your subscription:

• Linux: ./bin/run -DproviderUrl=<url> -Dqueue=<queue> -DconnectionFactory=<factory> -Dusername=<user> -Dpassword=<pass> -Dvpn=<vpn>

or

- Windows: .\bin\run.bat -DproviderUrl=<url> -Dqueue=<queue> -DconnectionFactory=<factory> -Dusername=<user> -Dpassword=<pass> -Dvpn=<vpn>To use the jumpstart kit with a configuration file, you will need to create a configuration file and pass the configuration file name as an argument when starting the consumer. The following parameters are required in the configuration file:
- providerUrl:<url>
- queue:<queue>
- connectionFactory:<factory>
- username:<user>
- password:<pass>
- vpn:<vpn>
- metrics:false
- output:com.harris.cinnato.outputs.FileOutput
- json:true

To run the Jumpstart Kit using the configuration file, run the following command:

• Linux: ./bin/run -Dconfig.file=<path/to/config-file>

or

• Windows: .\bin\run.bat -Dconfig.file=<path\to\config-file>

These values for the Jumpstart parameters can be obtained from the Connection Details Tab within the Subscription Details Page of the SCDS User Portal.

Appendix D: NESG Client Migration Guide

With the removal of the IPSec VPN, TLS is being used to encrypt user credentials when connecting to the Solace servers. This change requires the setting of Solace specific client properties that will enable the use of the TLS/SSL interface. There are three properties that a user needs to be aware of and set accordingly:

1. SSL Trust Store

- The file path of the trust store that the Solace JMS Client should use. This property is mandatory if the SSL Certificate Validation property is set to true. A DST Root CA X3 certificate is required and is included in the default Java trust store located in the Java directory under lib/security/cacerts (JDK 7u111+ and JDK 8u101+; earlier version require it to be imported).
- Format is a URL or path of the trust store file
 - o If JAVA_HOME is set, you can use the default Java trust store by setting the path to String defaultTrustStore = System.getenv("JAVA_HOME") + "/jre/lib/security/cacerts"
- Can be set using:
 - Client code under the Initial Context variable using JNDI name; env.put("Solace_JMS_SSL_TrustStore", defaultTrustStore)
 - Integration software setting for additional JNDI properties; name="Solace_JMS_SSL_TrustStore" value="mytruststore.jks"
 - o Java System Property; -Djavax.net.ssl.trustStore=mytruststore.jks

2. SSL Trust Store Format

- Indicates the format used by the trust store provided for the SSL Trust Store property.
- Acceptable formats are "jks" or "pkcs12"
- Can be set using:
 - Client code under the Initial Context variable using JNDI name; env.put("Solace_JMS_SSL_TrustStoreFormat", "jks")
 - Integration software setting for additional JNDI properties; name="Solace_JMS_SSL_TrustStoreFormat" value="jks"
 - o Java System Property; -Djavax.net.ssl.trustStoreType=jks

3. SSL Trust Password

- The trust store password that should be used for to access the trust store file provided in step 1. If using the default Java trust store, this property does not need to be set.
- Can be set using:

- Client code under the Initial Context variable using JNDI name; env.put("Solace_JMS_SSL_TrustStorePassword", "mypass")
- Integration software setting for additional JNDI properties; name="Solace_JMS_SSL_TrustStorePassword" value="mypass"
- o Java System Property; -Djavax.net.ssl.trustStorePassword=mypass

More information on Solace JNDI properties can be found on their website at:

https://docs.solace.com/Solace-JMS-API/JNDI-Connection-Properti.htm

Migrating an ActiveMQ/WebLogic Client to SCDS Solace

For those users who need to migrate from ActiveMQ or WebLogic, an additional property Solace property is required to be set. This is the Message VPN for the connection. Unlike ActiveMQ or WebLogic, Solace implements a concept called Message VPNs. A Message VPN is simply a virtually segregated environment for messages. SWIM uses these Message VPNs to separate the different systems that provide data via Solace; AIM FNS, FDPS, ITWS, STDDS, TBFM, and TFMS.

The Message VPN can be set in two ways:

- 1. Through appending the username with @ and the Message VPN name (e.g. user@FDPS) or
- 2. Through setting the Solace_JMS_VPN property
 - a. Client code under the Initial Context variable env.put("Solace_JMS_VPN", "FDPS") or
 - b. Integration software setting for additional properties name="Solace_JMS_VPN" value="FDPS"